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INDEP?ENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Grand Marais, Minnesota

Report on the Financial Statemefxts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each majer fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Grand Marais, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility foz} the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, :mplementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standzrds applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from rnaterial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessmant of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevart to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.




We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis-for-our audit opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Grand Marais,
Minnesota, as of December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows therzof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basc financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statementis in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not prowde us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota’'s basic financial statements. The
combining nonmajor and individug! fund financial statements listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of addttxonal analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining nonmajor and individual fund financial statements are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including somparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining nonmajor and individual fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June
16, 2015, on our consideration of City of Grand Marais, Minnesota’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Grand Marais, Minnesota’s internal
control-over financial reporting and compliance.

ot Miiny Ml L0

Virginia, Minnesota
June 186, 2015
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT‘S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

The City of Grand Marais, Minnasota’s management’s discussion and analysis provides an
overview of the City's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2014. Since this
information is designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently
known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota's
financial statements. '

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» Governmental activities' total net position is $9,034,370, of which net investment in
capital assets is $3,928,052.

» Business-type activities total net position is $14,292,281. Net investment in capital
assets represents $9,382,751 of the total,

» The City of Grand Marais's net position increased by $417,414 for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Of the increase, an increase of $103,171 was reported in the
governmental activities' ne position and $314,243 represented the increase in business-
type activities’ net position. The changes are primarily due to transfers between fund
types. 5

» The net expense of governmental activities was $945,841 for the current year. General
revenues totaled $933,256.

» Governmental funds’ fund balances decreased by $153,210 mainly due to the payoff of
the 2004A GO improvement Bonds of $495,000 in the debt service fund.

OVERVIEW OF THE FiNANCIAL?STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial
statements. The City of Grand Marais, Minnesota's basic financial statements consist of three
parts: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains required and other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements.

There are two government-wide financial statements. The statement of net position and the
statement of activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present
a longerterm view of the City's finances. The fund financial statements explain how
governmental activities were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most significant funds.

Government-wide Financial Sta?ements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information about the City,
as a whole, and about its activities in a way that helps the reader determine whether the City's
financial condition has improved or declined as a result of the year's activities. These
statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities using the accrual
basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash
is received or paid.
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These government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how they have changed.
You can think of the City’s net position — the difference between assets plus deferred outflows
of resources and liabilities—as one way to measure the City’s financial health or financial
position. Increases or decreases in the City's net position is one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other nonfinancial factors, such as
changes in the City's property tax base and state aids and the condition of City buildings also
need to be considered in assessing the overall health of the City.

in the statement of net position é,nd the statement of activities, all activities are shown in the
governmental activities and businefss-type activities:

. Governmental actxv:ttes—-—Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including
general government, public safety, streets, culture and recreation, and economic
development. Property taxes and state and federal grants and aids finance most of
these activities.

. Business-type activities~—~”§z’he City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or
most of the cost of services it provides. The City’s liquor store, golf course, electric,
water, and sewer services are reported here. .

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements prdvide detailed information about the significant funds—not the
City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond
covenants. However, the City establishes some funds to help it control and manage money for
a particular purpose or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes,
grants, and other money. The Cltys two kinds of funds—governmental and proprietary—use
different accounting methods. '

. Governmental funds—Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances
left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using the
modified accrual basis of sccounting. This method measures cash and all other financial
assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide
a detailed short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Gove'nmental fund information helps you determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
City’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds in a reconciliation statement following each governmental fund
financial statement.

. Proprietary funds—When the City charges customers for the services it provides—
whether to outside custorrers or to other units of the City—these services are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all
activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In
fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as the
business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more
detail and additional information, such as cash flows.

6
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Notes to the Financial Statemetits

The notes provide additional mformat:on that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide 'md fund financial statements.

Qther Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
the required supplementary information for budgetary comparison schedules. Combining and
individual fund financial statements are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FlNANClA%L ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a City's financial
position. The following tables show that in the case of the City of Grand Marais, assets and
deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities by $23,326,651, an increase of $417 414
from the prior year.

Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and other assets $ 8,128,855 $ 8270404 $ 5619002 § 5303453 $13,747,557 $ 13,573,857
Capital assets 8,806,040 9274877 1323892359 13750414 22195399 23025291
Total assets 18,934,595 17.545281 _19.,008.361 19,053,867 ~ 359420856 - 36,599,148
Deferred outflows of :
resources - 131,910 147,858 131,910 147,658
Long-ferm debt outstanding - 7,499,215 8,262,460 4,138,518 4,503,233 11,637,733 12,7658693
Other fiabilities 401,010 351,622 709,472 720,254 1,110,482 1.071.876
Total liabilities 7.800,228 8.614 082 4,847,990 5223487 12,748,215 13,837,569
Net position
Net investment in :
capitat assets 3,928,050 4,359,877 9,382,751 9,394,839 13,310,801 13,754,716
Restricted 1,915,195 1,980,381 1,074,316 1,085,802 = 2,989,511 3,086,183
Unrestricted 3,191,125 _ 2,580,941 3835214 . 3.487.397 7.026.339. - 6068338

Total net position $.9.034.370 $.8,931,199 $ 14,292,281 $.13,978.038 $.23.326,651 $.22.909.237

Net position of the City's governmental activities increased by 1.2 percent ($9,034,370
compared to $8,931,199) in 2014. Unrestricted net position—the part of net position that can be
used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants,
enabling legislation, or other legal requirements - increased from a $2,580,941 surplus at
December 31, 2013 to a §3,191,125 surplus at the end of this year.

Net position of the City's business-type activities increased by 2.2 percent ($14,292,281
compared to $13,878,038) in 2014,
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_ Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues ‘
Program ravenues: :
Fees, fines, charges, and other $ 1,156,702 § 1.223663 $ 5,850,007 $ 5654213 $ 7,007609 $ 6877876
Operating grants and contributions 493,665 182,381 5,000 5,000 498,665 187,391
Capital grants and contributions 87,304 679,161 72,912 - 160,216 679,161
General revenues: 3
Property taxes 796,142 796,438 31,585 32121 827,737 828,559
Grants and contributions not _
restricted to specific programs 108,307 105,716 - - 109,307 105,718
Other general revenues 27,807 1.335 35,857 644 63,464 1.879
Total revenues 2670927 .2,988.704 5,986,071 5.691.978 8,666,998 8,680,682
Program expenses: f
General government 586,467 618,175 - - 696,467 618,175
Public safety 232,309 221,897 - - 232,309 221,897
Streets 420,465 393,639 - - 420,465 393,639
Culture and recreation 962,825 1,150,768 - - 992,825 1,150,768
Economic development 85,040 - - - 85,040 -
Iterest 256,406 363,078 - - 256,406 363,075
Liquor store ' - - 1,596,470 1,667,685 1,596,470 1,567 685
Golf course 3 - - 176,571 179,535 176,571 179.535
Electric : - - 2,698,112 2,542,716 2.698,112 2,542,716
Water : - - 375,152 358,438 375,152 358,438
Sewer : - - 559.087 558,199 559.087 568 199
Total program expenses 2,683 512 2.747.554 5,405,392 5,206,573 8,088,904 7,954,127
Excess (deficit) before special :
item and transfers {12,585) 241150 580,679 485,405 578,094 726,555
Special item — loss on disposal :
of pool capital assets (160,680) - - - {160,680) -
Trarisfers 276,436 249,259 (276.436) {249,259} - -
Change in net position 103,171 490,409 314,243 236,148 417,414 726,555
Net position, January 1, 8931,199 _8440790 13978038 13,741,892 22909237 22,182,682

Net position, December 31 $.9.034,370 $.8,931,199 $.14,202.281 $.13.976,038 $.23,326.651 $22,909,237
Governmental Activities '

The most significant revenues of the governmental activities are fees, fines, charges, and other,
comprised mostly of culture and recreation fees, totaling 43% of revenues. Capital grants and
contributions, 3% of revenues, include the grants for major projects or equipment. Operating grants and
contributions, 18% of revenues, are used for operating expenses. Unrestricted grants and contributions,
4% of revenues, are used to finance the general activities. Property taxes levied for general purposes
amount to $599,296 or 22% of revenuss, a decrease of $33,800 over the prior year.

Culture and recreation expenses are the most significant (37%), followed by general government (26%),
streets (15%), interest on long-term debt (10%), public safety (3%), and economic development (3%).

8
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues of the City's business-type activities were $5,996,071; expenses were $5,405,392
(see Table 2). Net assets increased by $314,243 during the year ended December 31, 2014.
Factors driving these results incluc}e:

R

» Operations produced income cf $579,481 during the year ended December 31, 2014,
» All segments recorded operatifgwg income except for the golf course.

» Transfers out to other funds totaled $303,689.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE élTY’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds _

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendatile resources. In particular, the unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of the Cstys net resources available for spending at the end of the
year.

At December 31, 2014, the City’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balances of
$6,823,607, a decrease of $153,210 in comparison with the prior year. Restricted funds, which
are considered unavailable for appropriation for general operations, made up nearly 52%, or
$3,523,627 of the total ending fund balance. The nonspendable fund balance of $53,165 is also
not available for general operations The committed fund balance of $28,086 represents
revenues collected to fund the op=ratlon of a local TV channel. The City assigned $878,315 to
specific purposes. .

At the end of the year, the general fund reported a fund balance of $3,023,249, increasing
$414,759 from the prior year. General fund revenues were $336,364 less than the prior year's
and expenditures decreased by $323,185. During the current year, the general fund trapsfers to
other funds were $225,674, which were more than the prior year's transfers out of $160,279.

The debt service fund recorded a decrease in fund balance of $593,232 primarily due to the
payoff of the 2004A GO improvement Bonds from the 2013A GO Refunding Bond escrow
account.

in the other governmental funds, changes in fund balances were insignificant.

Progprietary Funds
The proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more cetail.

The liguor store enterprise fund zccounts for the operations of the City owned liquor store. In
2014, operating revenues increased by $44,799, while the operating expenses increased by
$28, 785 from the prior year. The liquor store operations produced an operating income of
$317,178 for this current year, which is an increase of $16,014 from the prior year's operating
income, A transfer out of $200,000 was made during 2014 to the general fund, as in prior years.

9
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The golf course enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the municipal golf course. In
2014, operating revenues decreased by $7,012 compared to the prior year. The golf course
operations produced an operating foss of $55,469. The City transferred in $25,380 from the
general fund and the County contributed $5,000 to partially fund this loss. Net position
increased by $1,666 for the year.

The electric enterprise fund accounts for the electric operations of the City. in 2014, operating
revenues increased by $150,774 compared to the prior year. Operating expenses also
increased from the prior year by $223,955. The electric operations produced operating income
of $270,040 in 2014. Interest expense charged to the electric distribution was $93,166. Net
position increased by $233,156.

The water enterprise fund accounts for the water operations of the City. In 2014, operating
revenues decreased by $6,284 compared to the prior year. Operating expenses increased by
$19,313 In 2014, operating incomsa of $27,699 was recorded compared to an operating income
of $583,296 in the prior year. Interest expense charged to the water operations was $32,144. A
transfer to the debt service fund was made in the amount of $45,315 during 2014. Net position
decreased by $7,618. -

The sewer enterprise fund accounts for the sewer operations of the City. In 2014, operating
revenues increased by $14,417 compared to the prior year. Operating expenses increased from
the prior year by $7,694. The sewer operations produced operating income of $20,033 in 2014.
Interest expense charged to the sewer operations was $8,658. A transfer of $55,210 was made
to the debt service fund. These transactions resulted in a decrease of $33,705 in net position in
the current year. :

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY !'?IiGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the City did not revise the general fund budget. The actual charges
to appropriations (expenditures) were $23,805 below the final budget amounts. A negative
variance occurred in general government ($139,370) expenditures primarily due to district
heating expenditures. Resources available for appropriation were $418,680 above the final
budgeted amounts. More intergovernmental aids and charges for services were received.
Transfers out to other funds exceeded the amount budgeted by $67,684.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMIN!STRAT%ON
Capital Assets

At the end of 2014, the City had $22,195,399 invested in a broad range of capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation), inclucing land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and licensed vehicles. (See Table 3 below.) This
amount represents a net decrease (including additions and deductions) of $828,892 over fast
year.

10
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: Table 3
Capital Assets at Year-end
- (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Aclivities Totals
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land $ 630922 % 830922 % 186,100 $ 188,100 $ 817,022 § - 817,022
Construction in progress 52.81C 47,526 - - 52,810 47,528
Buildings 2,016,88¢ 2,235,223 4,175,600 4,379,085 6,192,486 6,614,308
improvements 494 432 519,885 31,895 33,759 526,327 553,744
infrastructure 4,844,265 5020760 8,735,176 8,012.606 13,579,441 13,933,368
Machinery and equipment 345,06¢ 371,745 218,453 207,813 563,522 579,558
Licensed vehicles 421,656 448.716 42.135 31.051 463,791 479,767
Totals $.8,806,04C $.9,274,877 $ 13,389,359 $.13.750,414 $.22,195.399 $ 23.025.201

This year's major additions were:

Ford F150 4WD Supercab -

Liquor store register system

Asphalt by sliding hill _

Lift stations and oxidation cirtch equipment
Electric service mstal!atron

More detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the financial
statements.

Debt

At year-end, the City had $11, 53 ,000 in long-term debt outstanding versus $12,650,000 last
year—as shown in Table 4. '

_ Tabled4
Outstanding Debt, at Year-end
Goverﬁmental Business-lype
Activities Activities Totals
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
General obligation bonds '

(backed by the City) $ 7.450, OOO $ 8,210,000 $ 3250003 340,000 $ 7,775,000 $ 8,550,000
Electric system revenue bonds - - 2,800,000 3,055,000 2,800,000 3,055,000
General obligation notes - - 617,000 685,000 617,000 685,000
Water revenue note - - 340,000 360,000 340,000 360,000

Total &léai&.g@g $.8.210,000 $.4,082,000 $.4,440.000 $.11.532.000 $.12.650,000

The State limits the amount of ne debt that the City can issue to 3 percent of the market value
of all taxable property in the City. As of December 31, 2014, the City had no outstanding
qualifying net debt that applied to this $4,506,036 state-imposed limit.

11
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Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 to the financial
statements. _

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NE)@T YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City's elected and appointeéd officials considered many factors when setting the 2015
budget, adopting the tax levy, and setting fees that will be charged for the business-type
aclivities, ;

> The property tax levy will be held to 0%.

> Utility rates increase is 2%

Y

The City’s capital pan for 2015 includes planning for a maintenance facility.

¥ Employees were given a 1;5% cost of living adjustment raise.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the City Administrator, Michael J. Roth, City of Grand
Marais, P.O. Box 600, Grand Marais, Minnesota 55604.

12
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STA'f'EMENT OF NET POSITION
. Decamber 31, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents } $ 4,220825 $ 3586640 $ - 7,807,265
Taxes receivable ; 107,128 - 107,128
Special assessments receivable _ 931,126 150,454 1,081,580
Accounts receivable ‘ 108,758 358,370 466,128
Grants receivable : 37,400 - 37,400
Internal balances § 57.661 {57,661) -
Loans receivable ; 32,094 - 32,094
inventories § 23,537 387,679 411,216
Prepaid items : 29,628 34,588 64,216
Temporarily restricted assets :

Cash and cash equivalents ' 925 1,058,962 1,059,887

Investments 2,581,673 98,970 2,680,643
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land ; 630,922 186,100 817,022

Construction in progress : 52,810 - 52,810
Capital assets, net of accumulated depret,:atlon:

Buildings 2,016,886 4,175,600 6,192 486

Improvements 494,432 31,895 526,327

infrastructure : 4 844 265 8,735,176 13,579,441

Machinery and equipment _ 345,069 218,453 563,522

Licensed vehicles : 421656 42,135 463,791

TOTAL ASSETS : 16,934 595 14,008,361 35,942,958
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Defarred amount on refunding _ - 131,910 131,910
LIABILITIES :
Accounts payable : 187,734 249,342 437,076
Salaries payable - 58,208 84,942 143,150
Customer deposits Z - 15,275 15,275
Unearned revenues ; 50,000 338,773 388,773
Accrued interest payable : 105,068 24,140 126,208
Noncurrent liabilities :

Due within one year - 910,000 360,600 1,270,000

Due in more than one year j 6,589,215 3,778,518 10,367,733

TOTAL LIABILITIES f 7,800,225 4,847,990 12,748,215
NET POSITION ;
Netinvestment in-capital assets ‘ 3,928,050 9,382,751 13,310,801
Raslricted for: _

Debt service - 1,515,886 477,030 1,992,916

Library 251,730 - 251,730

Sewer equipment replacement ; - 597,288 597,286

Storefront renovation 1 147,579 - 147,579
Unrestricted : 3,191,125 3,835,214 7,026,339

TOTAL NET POSITION : $  9,034370 $ 14,292281 $ 23,328,651

The accompanying notes are an integral part offthese financial statements.
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%ClTY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
General government $ 696,467 3 159,543 $ 286,583
Public safety 232,308 45,377 300
Streets 420,465 - 25
Culture and recreation 992,825 951,782 206,747
Economic development 85,040 - -
Interest on long-term debt 256,408 - -
Total Governmental Activities 2,683,512 1,156,702 493,665
Business-type Activities
Licuor Store $ 1,596,470 $ 1,913,648 % -
Golf Course 176,571 121,102 5,000
Electric 2,698,112 2,874,986 -
Water 375,152 370,707 -
Sewer 559,087 570,464 -
Total Business-type Activities 5,405,392 5,850,807 5,000
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNME?NT $ 8088904 $ 7,007,609 $ 498,665

General Revenues
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposas
Property taxes; levied for specific purposes
Franchise taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings (loss)
Special ltem - loss on disposal of pool capital assets
Transfers
Total General Revenues, Special item, and
Transfers

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - JANUARY 1

NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31

The accompanying notes are an in’tegraﬁ part of these financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

15

Capital Grants .
and Governmental  Business-type
Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ - % (250,331) 3 - (250,331)
- (186,632 - (186,632)
87,304 {333,136) - {333,138)
- 165,704 ~ 165,704
- (85,040) - (85,040)
- {256,406) - (256,406)
87,304 {945,841) - (845,841)
$ - ~ 317178 317,178
26,753 - {23,716) (23,716)
46,159 - 223,033 223,033
- - (4,445) (4,445)
- - 11,377 11,377
72,912 - 523,427 523,427
$ 160,216 {945,841) 523,427 {422 ,414)
599,296 - 589,296
192,992 31,595 224,587
3,854 - 3,854
108,307 - 109,307
27,807 35,657 63,464
(160,680) - (160,680)
276,436 {276,436) -
1,048,012 {209,184) 839,828
103,171 314,243 417 414
8,931,199 13,978,038 22,909,237
$ 0034370 ' $ 14292281  § 23,326651



CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET

. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 3%, 2014

Other Total
Debt Service Governmental  Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3011562 3 557,507 $ 651,556 % 4,220,625
Cash and investments with fiscal agent - 2,582,598 - 2,582,598
Taxes receivable : 86,522 20,6086 - 107,128
Special assessments receivable 5 - 931,128 - 931,126
Accounts receivable : 105,748 - 1,010 106,758
Due from other funds 65,997 4,230 - 70,227
Grants receivable 37,400 - - 37,400
Loans receivables - - 32,094 32,094
fnventories 23,537 - - 23,537
Prepaid items 25,433 - 4,195 29,628
TOTAL ASSETS 5 $ 3,356,199 $ 4,098,067 3 688,855 $ 8,141,121
LIABILITIES ;
Accounts payable 3 185,264 $ - $ 2,470 3 187,734
Salaries payable : 47,506 - 10,702 58,208
Due to other funds 4,394 8,172 - 12,566
Unearned revenue 50,000 - - 50,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 287,164 8,172 13,172 308,508
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes ‘ 45,786 - - 45,786
Unavailable revenue - special assessments - 931,126 - 931,128
Unavailable revenue - loans receivable z - - 32,004 32,094
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 45,786 931,126 32,094 1,008,006
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 48,970 - 4,195 53,165
Restricted - 3,156,769 366,858 3,523,627
Committed - - 28,086 28,086
Assigned 633,865 - 244 A50 878,315
Unassigned 2,340,414 - - 2,340,414
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3,023,249 3,156,769 643,589 6,823,607
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
3,356,199 $ 4,096,067 $ 688,855 $ 814121

OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $

The accompanying notes are an integral par§ of these financial statements.
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cITY oE GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT
. OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental actiﬁvities in the statement of net position are
different because:

TOTAL FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 6823607

Capital assets used in governmenta activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 8,806,040

Other fong-term assets are not avaitiable to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds. 1,009,006

Interest payable on long-term debt ts susceptible to full accrual on the
government-wide statements. 5 (105,068)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds} payable are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore not repurted in the governmental funds. (7,499,2156)

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL? ACTIVITIES $ 9034370

The accompanying notes are an integral par;t of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
| GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
f(ear Ended December 31, 2014

Other Total
Debt Service Governmental  Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES
Taxes :

Property ' 3 593,228 $ 192,882 § - % 786,220

Franchise . - - : 3,854 3.854
Special assessments 5 1,265 135,915 - 137,180
Licenses and permits ; 85,079 - - 85,079
intergovernmental } 443,309 - 102,030 545,338
Charges for services : 1,045,721 - 18,923 1,085,644
Fines ‘ 4,489 - - 4,489
Gifts and contributions : 37,776 - 16,928 54,704
Investment earnings : 6,812 15,780 1,960 24,562
Miscellaneous : 4418 - 16,267 20,685

TOTAL REVENUES : 2,222,097 344,697 160,962 2,727,756
EXPENDITURES
Current -

General government _ 704 544 - - 704,544

Public safety 193,986 - - 193,986

Streets : 239,003 - - 239,003

Culture and recreation : 644,557 - 254,120 898,677

Economic development ' 5,040 - 80,000 85,040
Debt service .

Principal i - 760,000 - 760,000

interest and other charges - 278,454 - 278,454

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,787,130 1,038,454 334,120 3,159,704

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES O‘;\IER

EXPENDITURES : 434,967 (693,757) {173,158) (431,948)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) _
Transfersin ‘ 203,184 100,525 198,421 502,110
Transfers out ‘ {225,674) - - {225,674)
Sale of capital assetls } 2,302 . - 2,302

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (US;ES) (20,208) 100,525 198 421 278,738

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 414,759 (593,232) 25,263 (153,210)
FUND BALANCES - JANUARY 1 2,608,490 3,750,001 618,326 8,976,817

FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31 $ 3023249 $ 3156769 3 643589 § 6823607

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL@ FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Yeér Ended December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities m the statement of activities are different because:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL? GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 3 (153,210)

Governmental funds report outiays for capital assets as expenditures;

however, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated

over their estimated useful lives. :
Expenditures for capital assets 42,185
Less current year depreciation {348,040)

(305,855)

Governmental funds report the entire net sales price (proceeds) from sale of

an asset as revenue because it provides current financial resources. In

contrast, the statement of activities reports only the gain or loss on the sale of

the assets. Thus, the change in net assets differs from the change in fund

balance by the cost of the asset sold. (162,982)

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenues in

governmental funds. :
Change in unavaitable revenue - de!mquent property taxes 6,068
Change in unavailable revenue -~ special assessments receivable (49,877)
Change in unavailable revenue - loans receivable (16,265)

(60,074)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment cf the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources cf governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums and discounts when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amomzed in the statement of activities.

Amortization of premium : 3,245
Principal repaid 760,000

763,245
Some expenses reported in the statement bf activities do not require the use

of current financial resources-and these are. not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds,

Change in accrued interest payable on long -term debt 22,047

CHANGE IN NET POSTION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 3 108,171

The accompanying notes are an integral pa?t of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND MARALS; MINNESOTA
STAfTEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Liguor Store? Golf Course Electric Water Sewer
Enterprise : Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fund : Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS :
CURRENT ASSETS :
Cash and cash equivalents § 1021788 § 2,589 $ 1,261,386 $ 456,181 $ 844,696 3 3,586,640
Accounts receivable 157 5,000 275,964 33,259 44,950 359,370
Due from othet funds - - 1,847 8,922 1,797 12,566
Special assessments receivable - - - 150,454 - 150,454
{nventories 202,356 5,381 172,726 7,092 124 387,679
Prepaid items 7,046 2,522 17,1914 3,080 4,749 34,588
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,231,347 15,492 1,729,114 659,028 896,316 4,531,297
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Reyenue bond covenant accounts - - 671,099 - - 671,088
MPCA contract ascounts - ~ - ~ 387.863 387,863
Totat restricied cash and cash equivalents - - 671,099 - 387,863 1,058,962
Restricted investments :
MPCA contract accounts . - - 98,970 98,970
Capital assets 3
Land - 154,100 25,000 5,000 2,000 188,100
Buildings 20,5298 89,466 2,998,692 2,286,662 2462238 7.857 587
Improvements ~ 310,058 - - - 310,058
Infrastructure - 65,517 3,523,633 5,283,910 3,564,586 12,447 646
Machinery and equipment 156,819 197,992 172,240 382,361 1,144 457 2,053,969
Licensed vehicles 500 240,918 28,150 83,470 353,038
Less accumulated depreciation {140,999; (501,787) {2,538,827) (2,966,594 {3,669,832) {9.819,039)
Total capital assets {net of accumudated
depreciation} 36,449 315,846 4,420,656 5,029,489 3,686,918 13,389,358
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 36,449? 315,846 5,091,758 5,028,489 4073752 14,547,291
TOTAL ASSETS 1 _267,796? 331,338 6,820,869 5,688,517 4,970,068 19,078,588
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding - - 131,810 - - 131,910
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Accounts payable 33,28% 1,317 202,530 3,532 8,682 249,342
Sataries payable 13,743 20,819 27,973 9,378 13,029 84942
Accrued interest payable - - 11,953 5,677 3,510 21140
Due o other funds E - 65,997 - 4,230 70,227
Uneamed revenue E - 338,773 - - 338,773
Customer deposits payable - - 15,275 - - 15,275
Bonds, notes, and loans payable - current ~ - 255,000 90,000 15,000 360,000
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 47,024 22,136 917.501 108,587 44,451 1,139,699
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds, notes and loans payable, less current . - 2,601,518 867,000 310,000 3,778,518
TOTAL LIABILITIES 47 ,0242 22,136 3,518,018 975,587 354 451 4918217
NET POSITION :
Net investment in capifat assets 36,44¢ 315,848 1,696,048 4,072,489 3,261,919 9,382,751
Restricted for debt service - 328,676 150,454 - 477,630
Restricted for sewer equipment replacement - - - 597,286 597,288
Unrestricted 1,184,323 (8.644) 1,411,138 480,987 756.412 3,835,214
TOTAL NET POSITION 3 1220,772? 3 308,202 $ 3,433,780 © $ 4,712,830 3 4815617 $ 14,292,281

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ﬁnané;ial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF REV@ENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
: PROPRIETARY FUNDS
: Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-typa Activities - Enterprise Funds

Liqtﬁor Store Golf Course Electric Water Sewer

En{erprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
REVENUES
Charges for sales and services $ 1913648 $ 121,102 § 2874586 $ - 370,707 $ 570464 $ 5,850,907
OPERATING EXPENSES :
Cost of sales 1.279,192 21,833 1,708,541 - - 3,008,566
Salaries 162,958 84,061 206,548 64,185 127,445 645,201
Employes benefits and payroll taxes ©60,178 23,398 57.687 22,488 48,776 213,525
Advertising 6,778 2,497 ~ - - 9,273
Bad debts 26 - - - - 26
Gontract services : - - 103,801 18,921 123,737 246,459
Fagility fees : - - 65,889 - - 65,899
insurance S 7044 2,122 36,427 1,817 5,313 52,723
Miscellaneous © 31,038 3,289 27,290 3,162 4,134 68,914
Rent . 38,400 - 9,000 4,500 4,500 56,400
Repairs and maintenance : 2,634 4,032 43,300 3,968 14,672 68,606
Supplies o 3,126 16,121 120,778 35,320 19,688 185,033
Telephone : 864 763 998 2,273 587 5485
Lititities : ~ 1,885 5868 26,157 63,762 97,672
Depreciation . 4235 16,570 218,809 160,213 136,817 538,644
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ?;,59&470 176,571 2.604,946 343,008 550,431 5,271,426
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 317,178 {56,469) 270,040 27.699 20,033 579,481
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment eamings {l0ss) o 3,587 2 10,768 10,869 10,451 35,657
Property taxes : - - - 31,895 - 31,5895
Grants and.conttibutions - 5,000 - - - 5,000
interest expense : - - (93,166) (32,144) (8,658) {133,066
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 3,567 5.002 (82,398) 10,320 1,795 (51.714)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL GRANTS
AND TRANSFERS 320,745 (50,467) 187,642 38,0619 21,828 517,767
Capital grants - 26,753 46,159 - - 72,812
Transfers in : - 25,380 937 468 468 27,253
Transfers out £ (200,000) - {1,582) (46,108} (66,001} {303,889
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 120,745 1,666 233,156 {7.619) (33,705} 314,243
TOTAL NET POSITION - JANUARY 1 1,100,027 307,536 3,200,604 4,720,549 4 649,322 13,978,038
TOTAL NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31 $ 1 220,772 $ 308,202 $§ 3,433,760 $ 4,712,930 $ 45615617 $ 14,292,281

THe accompanying notes are an integral part of these ﬁnéncial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cashreceived from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid fo employees
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers in from other funds

Transfers out to-other funds

Advances 1o other funds

Advances from other funds
NET CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase or construction of fixed assets

Special assessments colfected

Property taxes collected

Principal paid on fong-term debt

{nterest paid on long-term debt

Capital grants

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest.on investments

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN.CASH AND
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31

CIT‘;i’ OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESQTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
~ PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Yoar Ended December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Liguor Golf
: Store Course Electric Water Sewer
Znterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
S; 1913814 § 121,102 $28764686 § 371023 § 570,708  § 5853113
(1,502,024) (75.869) (2,117,471) (104,301) {283,405) {4,083,070)
(169,819 (81,749) (205,806) {65,082) {129,310 {851,866)
241,871 (36,516) 553,189 201,640 157.993 1.118177
- 25,380 937 488 468 27,253
(200,000) - (1,582) {46,106) (56,001) {303,689
- (8,529) (5,672) . {47.275) {25,980) {87,456)
- - - - 513 5313
(200,000} 16,851 6,317) {92.913) {81,000 {363,379)
(12,196) (4,531 (83,215) - {75,647) {175,589)
. - - 21,486 - 21,486
- - - 31,585 - 31,595
- - (255,000) {88,000) {15,000) {358,000}
- - {78.432) (32,771) {9.608) {120,811}
- 26,753 46,159 - - 72,912
(12,196) 22,222 (370.488) (67,690) {100.255) {528,407)
3,567 2 4,053 10,869 5927 24 418
33,242 2,559 180,437 51,908 {17,336} 250,809
988,546 30 1,762,048 404,275 1,249,894 4,394,733
% 1,021,788 $ 2,589 § 1,032,485 $ 456,181 $ 1,232,559 $ 4.645.602

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF GASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
~ PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Liquor Golf

. Store Course Electric Water Sewsr

Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise

¢ Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
{LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
QPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Opertating income (loss) G 246766 $ (55469) $ 270040 0§ 27698 § 20033 § 500089

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation : 4,235 16,570 218,809 160,213 136,817 536,644
Changes in assets and liabilities :
{increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable : 166 - 1,085 316 244 1,781
inventories : - 1,585 60,677 15,501 158 77,823
Prepaid items : 874 (182) {115) {883) 1,267 961
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts payable (3.199) {1,332) 1,556 {313) 1,339 {1,849
Salaries payable : (6,961) 2,312 742 {893) {1,865) {6,665)
Customer deposits : - - 425 - - 425
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY :
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 241,871 $ - (36516) - $ 553,189 ¢ 201,640 $ 157,893  $ 1138177
RECONCIHUIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO THE STATEMENT GF NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,021,788 $ 2,589 $ 1,261,386 $ 456,181 $ 844,696 = $ 3,586,640
Restricted cash ang cash equivalents: :
Revenug bond covenant accounts : - - 671,099 - - 671,099
MPCA contract-accounts - - - - 387,863 387,863
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 34 3 1,021,788 3 2,589 - § 1932485 $ 456,181 $.1,232,5589 = $ 4,645,602

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial staterments.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

NOTE$ TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SiGNIFIf;’:ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). GAAP includes all
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The accounting
and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies and practices are
discussed in subsequent sections of this Note.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Grand Marais, aneSota a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota, is a
statutory city, governed by an e!ected city council which consists of one mayor and four council-
members. :

8. Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normaily are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type act}wtfes which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by the given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properiy included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues. _

Fund Financial Statements :

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate fund
statements are presented for governmental and proprietary activities. These statements
present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-major
funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

The description of the funds inctua{ed in this report are as follows:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those fufwds through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance
of current financial resources. The City has presented the following governmental funds:
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA
NOT ES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. December 31, 2014
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNSFI?CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Major Governmental Funds: |

The General Fund is used to accc:unt for and report all financial resources not accounted for in
another fund.

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expend'@ture for principal and interest.

Nonmajor Governmental Fundsé

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or commxtted to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those
types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income,
financial position and cash flow. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities are
included on the Statement of Net Position. The City has presented the fo!towmg proprietary
funds:

Major Proprietary Funds:

The Liquor Store Enterprise Fund is used to account for the revenues generated from liguor
sales. -

The Golf Course Enterprise Fund is used to account for the revenues generated from golf
course fees and sales. :

The Electric Enterprise Fund is urfsed to account for the revenues generated from the charges
for distribution of electric services to the residential and commercial users of the City.

The Water Enterprise Fund is use§d to account for the revenues generated from the charges for
distribution of water to the residential and commercial users of the City.

The Sewer Enterprise Fund is us ed to account for revenues generated from the charges for
wastewater treatment services prc;wded to the residential and commercial users of the City.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

NOTE$ TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
© December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF S!GNIF!{:ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus and Basfis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardiess of
the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities
(whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized at the time the liability is incurred. Property taxes are generally recognized as
revenues in the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
when all requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Depreciation
expense can be specifically identified by program and is included in the direct expenses of each
program. interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the statement of activities. Generally, the effect of material interfund activity has
been removed from the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they become both “measurable and available’). “Measurable” means the
amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The
City considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end.
Grant revenue is recorded in the year in which the related expenditure is made. Other revenue
is considered available if collected within one year. Expenditures are generally recorded when a
iability is incurred. However, expenditures are recorded as prepaid for approved disbursements
incurred in advance of the year in which the item or service is to be used and debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, special assessments and loan repayments are considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government. :
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGMFI;CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers. Operating
expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement cfaf cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash
on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments purchased with a maturity of three
months or less. :

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position or Fund Balances

1) Cash balances for all funds Oféthe City are maintained on a combined basis and invested to
the extent possible, in allowable short-term investments. All investments are stated at fair
value. 5

2) Receivables from and payab‘ées to external parties are reported separately and are not
offset in the proprietary fund financial statements and business-type activities of the
government-wide financial statements, unless a right of offset exists.

3) The City maintains inventorieé in its general fund and enterprise funds. All inventories are
valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, and the cost of these inventories are
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

4) Any residual balances outstarﬁding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.
Outstanding balances betweergw funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”.

Legally authorized transfers ar§e treated as interfund transfers and are included in the resuits
of operations of both Govemnfaental and Proprietary Funds.

5) Certain payments to vendors greﬂect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in koth government-wide and fund financial statements.

6) Restricted assets are cash and cash equivalents and investments whose use is limited by
legal requirements such as a bond indenture. Restricted assets are reported only in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the governmental activities,
restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments include the 2013A GO Refunding
Bond escrow account. in the business-type activities, restricted cash and cash equivalents
and investments include amounts restricted by electric system revenue bond covenants and
sewer MPCA contracts.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGN!FIQANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

7

8)

9)

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and licensed vehicles are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated historical cost for assets where
actual historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their
estimated fair value at the date of donation. The City elected not to report general
infrastructure assets acquired prior to January 1, 2004, therefore, general infrastructure
assets include only those acquired subsequent to January 1, 2004. The City maintains a
threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing land, buildings, improvements,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and licensed vehicles. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives is not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. When assets are no longer needed by the City, such assets are either disposed of if it
is determined there is no value, or sold for an immaterial amount. Useful lives vary from 20
to 50 years for improvements, buildings and infrastructure, and 4 to 30 years for machinery
and equipment, and licensed vehicles. Land and construction in progress are not being
depreciated. :

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expensefexpenditure) until then. The government only has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the proprietary
funds and government-wide statements of net position. A deferred charge on refunding
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refunding debt. '

Government-wide financial statements report uneared revenue in connection with
resources that have been received, but not yet earned. Governmental funds report
unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period and resources that have been received,
but not yet earned. :

Delinquent property taxes receivable, less any delinquent taxes that are to be received
within 60 days, are recorded as deferred inflows of resources in the fund financial
statements because they are not available to finance the current year operations of the City.
Deferred inflows of resources reported in the debt service fund represents special
assessments receivable and in the Storefront Renovation Special Revenue Fund represents
loans receivable. %
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFK;?ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

10) In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund type financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
position. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are recognizec as an outflow of resources in the period incurred. On the
government-wide and proprietary fund type statement of activities, unamortized debt
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt. The
governmental fund financial statements report debt premiums and discounts as other
financing sources and uses, separately from the face amount of the debt issued. Debt
issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures. The long-term debt consists
primarily of general obligation improvement and revenue bonds and revenue notes.

11) Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) uniil that time. The
City has only one type of itam, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of
accounting that qualifies for raporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmentat funds
report unavailable revenues from three sources: property taxes, which are reported in the
general fund, special assessments, which are reported in the Debt Service Fund, and loans
receivable, which are reported in the Storefront Renovation Special Revenue Fund. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the
amounts become available.

12) Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in the government-wide financial
statements. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or
acguire the capital assets. Net position is reported as restricted in the government-wide
financial statement when there are limitations imposed on their use through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

in the fund financial statements, proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the
government-wide statements. Fund balances of the governmental funds represent the
difference between the current assets and deferred outflows of resources and current
fiabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Fund balances of the governmental funds are
classified as follows: :

Nonspendable—amounts ?that cannot be spent either because they are in
nonspendable form, such as inventory and prepaid items, or because they are
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted——amounts that§ can be spent only for specific purposes because of

enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.
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2)

Committed—amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a
formal action of the City Cauncil. The City Council is the highest level of decision
making authority for the City. Commitments may be established, modified, or
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the City Council.

Assigned—amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. The City Councit
or, City Administrator or Firance Director authorized by the City Council may assign
amounts for specific purposes.

Unassigned—all other speddabte amounts.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first, When
an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City Council has
provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Revenues and Expenditures

The property tax calendar in Minnesota follows the calendar year. Property tax levies are
certified to the County Auditor in December of each year for collection from taxpayers in
May and October of the following calendar year. In Minnesota, counties act as collection
agents for all property taxes. The county spreads all levies over taxable property. Property
taxes become a lien on the property the following January 1. The county generally remits
taxes to the City at periodic intarvals as they are collected. A portion of property taxes levied
is paid by the State of Minnesota through various tax credits, which are included in revenue

from state sources in the ﬂnan;ciat statements.

Federal, state, and other revenues are reported under the legal and contractual
requirements of the individual programs and are classified into essentially two types of
revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose before any amounts
will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based on expenditures recorded.
In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure, and the
rasources are recorded as revenue at the time of receipt or earlier if they are available.

City employees earn vacation and sick leave based on years of service and union and
employment contracts. The liability for accrued vacation leave is recorded in the appropriate
funds as an accrued liability. Unpaid sick leave does not vest and, therefore, is not accrued.
Sick pay is expensed in the year taken.
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQU;VALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City's funds are combined (pooled) and invested to the extent available in various
investments authorized by Minnesota statutes. This pool functions essentially as a demand
account for all participating funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed on the financial
statements as “cash and cash equivalents”, “investments”, and “restricted cash and cash
equivalents”. Several funds hold cash separate from the cash and investment pool.

“Cash and cash equivalents”, “§nvestments”, and ‘restricted cash and cash equivalents”
recorded are comprised of: '

Cash ' $ 8,259,518
Petty Cash ' 1,910
Certificates of Deposit 372,000
Investments 2.914.367

Total : $.11.547.795

Reconciliation to financial statemehts:

Statement of Net Pbsition

Cash and cash equivalents $_7.807.265
Restricted cash and

cash equivalents 1,059,887
Restricted investments 2,680,643
Total restricted cash, cash

equivalents, anc investments 3,740,530

Total : $11,547,795
Deposits |

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits. The City's deposit policy
requires that deposits in excess of FDIC insurance be protected by pledged securities.

The City maintains deposits at financial institutions authorized by the City Council. Minnesota
statutes require that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral. The
market value of collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not covered by
insurance or bonds. State statutes authorize the types of securities which may be pledged as
collateral and require that those securities be held in safekeeping by the City or in a financial
institution other than that furnishing the collateral. At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's
deposits, which includes cerificates of deposit, was $8,631,518; the bank balance was
$8,681,092. Of the bank balance, $1,301,739 was insured and $7,379,353 was collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s agent in the City's name.
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investments |

Custodial Credit Risk ~ Investments

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or securities that
are in the possession of an outside party. The City does not have a formal investment policy for
custodial credit risk for investments. All investments purchased by the City are held by a third-
party safekeeping agent appointed as custodian.

Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk

According to the City's investment policy, the City is authorized and allowed by state statute to
invest in qualified repurchase agreements, obligations of the U.S. government, obligations of
the State of Minnesota or its muncipalities, shares of certain investment companies, banker's
acceptance notes, commercial paper issued by United States corporations rated A-1, P-1 and
F-1, and guaranteed investment cantracts.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligation. The City's investments in money market funds are not rated as to credit risk. The
City places no limit on the amoun: the City may invest in any one issuer and, as of December
31, 2014, had no investments in any issuer that exceeded five percent of total investments,
except for the Minnesota Municipal Money Market Fund and U.S. Treasury Notes,

Interest Rate Risk ;

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. The City does not have a formal investment policy that addresses
interest rate risk. 5

The City manages its exposure %io fair value losses arising from changing interest rates by
purchasing investments with varying maturity dates. As of December 31, 2014, the City had the
following investments: :

j Maturity
. Moody's Less Than 1=5 6-10
Investment Tvpe . Rating Fair Value 1 Year Years Years
Minnesota Municipal Money f
Market Fund . NA $ 215326 $ 215326 $ - $ -
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney ’
Money Market Funds : N/A 18,398 18,398 - -
Federal Home Loan Bank
Step Bonds - AAA 98,970 - - 98,970
U.8. Treasury Notes T AAA 2,581.673 873,279 _1.908.394 -
Total Investments . $.2.914.367 $_.907,003 $.1.908394 §. _ 98970

The City utilizes the Minnesota. Municipal Money Market (4M) Fund which is an external
investment pool not registered with the Securities Exchange Commission {SEC) that follows the
same regulatory rules of the SEC under rule 2a7. The fair value of the position in the pool is the
same as the value of the pool shares.
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NOTE 3 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

Several businesses have received loans from the City through the City's Storefront Loan
Program. The unpaid principal balance on these loans as of December 31, 2014 was $32,094.

On July 26, 2013, the City loaned $§10,000 and on April 10, 2014, the City loaned $10,000 to the

Cook County/Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority. The notes were non-

interest bearing and were due with ‘he first levy payments received by the Authority in 2013 and
2014. The notes were paid in 2014 and the balance as of December 31, 2014 was $0.

On February 18, 2009, the City ‘oaned $100,000 to the Cook County/Grand Marais Joint
Economic Development Authority, with interest at 6%. The note was due on October 15, 2010.
A payment of $100,000 was made n 2010 for principal and interest. The balance of $5,040 was
forgiven in 2014 by the City and the balance as of December 31, 2014 was $0.
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year eﬁded Défcember 31, 2014, was as follows:

Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets not being depreclated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Total capital assets, being deprecxated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being deprecmted

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Total capital assets, being depreczated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
improvements
infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciate{l, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net
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Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
$ 630922 $ - % - - % 630,922
‘ 47,526 5,284 - 52.810
678,448 5284 - 683,732
5,870,934 - {848,800) 5,022,034
752,513 13,970 (24,576) 741,907
7,743,389 - - 7,743,389
508,236 22,931 (73,503) 547 664
563,169 - - 563.169
15,528,241 36,801 {946.979) 14,618,163
(3,635,711) (81,381) 711,944 (3,005,148)
(232,528) (22,458) 7.508 (247 475)
(2,722,629) (176,485) - (2,899,124)
(226,491) {40,648) 64,544 (202,595)
(114.453) {27 060) - (141.513)
{8.931.812) {348,040} 783.997 {6.495 855)
8.506.429 {311.139) (162 .982) 8,122,308
$.9274877 $.(305856) $_(162,962) $.8.806.040
$ 186,100 % - 8 - $ 186,100
186,100 - ~ 186,100
7,857,587 - . 7,887,587
310,058 - - 310,058
12,364,183 103,040 (19,587} 12,447 646
2,012,005 41,964 - 2,053,969
322.453 30,585 - 353.038
22,866 296 175,589 (19.587) 23,022,298
(3,478,502) (203,485) - (3,681,987}
(276,299) (1.864) (278,183)
(3,451,5687) (280,470) 19,587 (3,712,470)
(1,804,192) (31,324) ~ {1,835,516)
(291.402) {19,501) - {310.803)
(9,301,982) (536.644) 19,587 (9.818.039)
13,564,314 (361.055) - 13,203,259
$13,750.414 $_(361.085%) S $.13.389,359
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Depreciation expense was chargeéd to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows: ?

Governmental activities

General government : % 5,277
Public safety 42,570
Streets 5 187,946
Culture and recreation 112,247
Total depreciation expense-
governmental activities $_348.040
Business-type activities :
Liquor Store ; $ 4,235
Golf Course 16,570
Electric ' 218,809
Water - 160,213
Sewer 5 136.817
Total depreciation expense-

business-type activities $..536,644

NOTE 5 - RATE STABILIZATION f’ROVlSlON

A reserve for rate stabilization in the electric enterprise fund was established in 1996. The
concept of rate stabilization is used by utilities to defer current revenues to future periods to
reduce impacts of future rate increases to customers. The reserve, which is recorded as
unearned revenue, will be used tc offset future rate increases and maintain income stability in
future periods. At December 31, 2014, the rate stabilization reserve was $338,773.

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The City issues general obligation bonds, improvement notes and revenue notes and bonds to
finance the purchase of major capital items and the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities or improvements. Bonded indebtedness has also been entered into to advance refund
general obligation bonds. General obligation bonds and notes have been issued for both
governmental and business-type activities and are being repaid from the applicable resources.
The electric revenue bonds are payable solely from the net revenues of the Electric Enterprise
Fund, the water revenue notes are payable solely from the net revenues of the Water
Enterprise Fund, and the sewer revenue bond is payable solely from the net revenues of the
Sewer Enterprise Fund. For gevernmental activities, claims and judgments are generally
liquidated by the general fund.
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Components of long-term liabilities are as %’onows:

Issue Interest Original Final Principal
Date Rates Issue Maturity Qutstanding
Governmental Activities '
General Obligation Bonds :
2Q04A Improvement 06/C1/2004  3.40-5.10% 3 710,000 02/01/2025 ~
2005C Improvement 11/22/2005  3.50-4.60% $ 895,000  02/01/2027 665,000
2008A Improvement 10/07/2008  3.25-4.50% $ 2685000  02/01/2029 2,060,000
2009A Improvement Refunding 12/10/2009  2.10-4.70% $ 1675000  02/01/2031 1,505,000
2013A Refunding 06/20/2014 2.00-3.15% $ 3295000 02/01/2029 3.220.000
Governmental Activities Long-term Liabilities 7.450,000
Business-type-activities
Revenue Bonds :
2012A Electric System Refunding Q7725/2014  2.00-2.50% $ 1,925000 05/01/2023 1,595,000
2013B Electric System Refunding 06/20/2014 3.00% $ 1,300,000  05/01/2023 1,205,000
Total Revenue Bonds : 2,800,000
General Obligation Bonds
2013A Refunding 06/20/2014 2.00-3.15% 3 340,000  02/01/2030 325,000
General Obligation Notes
1999 Water Revenue 04/27/1999 2.56% $ 484,112 08/20/2019 151,000
2004 Improvement 08/11/2004 2.53% $ 812,229  02/20/2024 466,000
Total General Obligation Notes ? 617,000
Ravenue Note ;
2008A Water 01/24/2008 3.59% $ 470,000  12/01/2027 340,000
Business-type Activities Long-term Liabilities 4,082,000
Total Long-Term Liabilities $_.11.532,000

Governmental Funds

Pledged Revenues
The City issued GO improvement bonds to finance various improvement projects within the City in 2004 of

$710.000, in 2005 of $895,000, and in:2008 of $2.695,000. In 2013, the City issued $3,295,000 general
obligation refunding bonds of which the proceeds were used to partially advance refund the outstanding 2004,
2005, and 2008 GO improvement bonds. In 2014, the 2004 bonds were fully paid. Principal and interest paid
for the current year on these issues was $916,043. At December 31 2014 principal and interest on the bonds
to be paid from special assessments levied upon the benefitted property, ad valorem taxes, and the 2013A

Bond escrow account to maturity is:

; Principal
lssue Maturity and interest
2005C 2027 $ 679,808
2008A 2029 2,185,312
2013A 2030 3,873,333

: $.6,738.453

36




CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

NOTES§ TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. December 31, 2014

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (COﬁTINUED)

In 2009, the City issued $1,675,000 improvement refunding bonds of which the proceeds were used to effect a
refunding of $1,630,000 of the outstanding GO Temporary improvement Bonds of 2007 issued to finance
various municipal improvement projects within the City. Principal and interest paid for the current year was
$121,410. At December 31, 2014, principal and interest to maturity in 2031 to be paid primarily from special
assessments levied upon the benefitted property and ad valorem taxes totals $2,124,602.

Enterprise Funds

Pledged Revenues ,

The City has pledged Electric Enterprise Fund revenues, net of any normal and reasonable expenses of
operations, to repay electric system revenue bonds. In 2012, the City issued $1,825,000 electric system
revenue refunding bonds of which the proceeds were used to effect an advance refunding of the outstanding
2003 electric system revenue bonds. In 2013, the City issued $1.300,000 electric system revenue refunding
bonds of which the proceeds were used to advance refund the outstanding 2004 and 2005 electric system
revenue bonds. Proceeds from the original refunded bonds were used to finance electric system
improvements. Principal and interest paid for the current year on these issues was $329,350, At December 31,
2014, principal and interest on the bonds to be paid from pledged future revenues to maturity is:

: Principal
Issue Mazurity and Interest
2012A 2023 $ 1,766,412
2013B 2023 1,402 325

§ $.3,168,737

The City has pledged future Sewer Enterprise Fund revenues, net of any normal and reasonable expenses of
operations, to repay GO sewer revenue bonds. in 2013, the City issued $340,000 general obligation refunding
ponds of which the proceeds were used to advance refund the outstanding 2006 GO sewer revenue bonds.
Proceeds from the 2006 bonds were used to finance improvements to the sewer system. Principal and interest
paid for the current year was $24,608. At December 31, 2014, principal and interest on the bonds to maturity
in 2036 to be paid from pledged future revenues totals $416,050.

The City has pledged future Water Enterprise Fund revenues, net of any normal and reasonable expenses for
operations, to repay a $484,112 GO revenue note issued in 1999, an $812,229 GO improvement note issued
in 2004, and a $470,000 revenue note issued in 2008. Proceeds from all three issues were used to finance
water system renovations and improvements. Principal and interest paid for the current year on these issues
was $117,563. At December 31, 2014, principal and interest on the notes to be paid from pledged future

revenues, and special assessments and @d valorem taxes for the 2004 issue, to maturity is:

: Principal
Issue Maturity and Interest
1999 2018 $ 162,802
2004 2024 527,352
2008A 2027 453,288

| $.1,143.442
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CO!@!TINUED)

Long-term liability activity for the year endéd December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Governmental activities
Bonds Payable
2004A GO Improvements
2005C GO Improvements
200BA GO Improvement

CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. December 31, 2014

2009A GO Improvement Retunding

2013A GO-Refunding
Total Bonds Payable
Bond Premium

Governmental Activities -

Long-term Liabilities

Business-type Activities
Bonds Payable
2012A Electric System
Revenue Refunding
2013A GO Refunding
20138 Electric System
Revenue Refunding

Bond Premium
Total Bonds Payable

Notes Payable
1999 GO Water Revenue
2004 GO Improvement
2008A Water Ravenue
Total Notes Payable

Business-type Activities -

Long-term Liabilities

: Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 495000 § - $ (495000) 3 -8 -
700,000 . (35,000) 665,000 665,000
2,155,000 - (95,000) 2,060,000 100,000
1,565,000 - (60,000) 1,505,000 85,000
3,295,000 - (75,000)  _3,220,000 80,000
8,210,000 - (760,000) 7,450,000 910,000
52,460 - (3.245) 49,215 :
$W§AM .- $_(783245) $.7499215 $_.910.000
$ 1755000 $ . § (160,000) $ 1,595000 $ 160,000
340,000 - {15,000) 325,000 15,000
1,300,000 - (95.000)  _1.205.000 95,000
3,395,000 - (270,000) 3,125,000 270,000
63,233 - (6,715) 56,518 -
3458233 - (276.715) _3.181.518 270,000
179,000 - (28,000) 151,000 29,000
506,000 - (40,000) 466,000 41,000
360,000 - (20,000) 340,000 20,000
1,045,000 - (88.000) 957,000 90.000
SAéM $ . $_(364715) $.4.138518 8._360.000

Minimum annual principal and interest payments required to retire long-term liabilities are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030-2033

Total

Governmental Aictivities

Business-Type Activities

Government-wide

Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
$ 910,000 $ | 234,260 3 360,000 $ 106,825 $ 1270000 % 341085
2,135,000 £ 172,798 367,000 97,731 2,502,000 270,526
290,000 - 126,243 378,000 88,422 669,000 214,665
295,000 - 118,510 391,000 78,814 686,000 168,324
306,000 112,460 308,000 68,738 703,000 181,106
1,670,000 - 443619 1,822,000 176,655 3,592,000 620,274
1,600,000 £ 192,536 185,000 27,786 1,785,000 220,322
245 000 : 11832 80.000 1,260 325.000 12.892
$7.450,000 $.1.413.055 $..4,082000 $_ 646,220 $.11.532,000 $.2,059,284
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CON'&?&'!NUED)

No interest was capitalized during 2014; intérest incurred and charged to expense totaled $366,334.

Advance Refundings

On June 20, 2013, the City issued $3,635,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A with
interest rates ranging between 2.00% and 3.15% to partially advance refund $3,687,000 of the outstanding
2004A, 2005C, and 2008A General Obligation Improvement Bonds and the 2006 General Obligation Sewer
Revenue Bonds with interest rates ranging between 3.50% and 4.10%. The proceeds of the new bonds were
placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the old bonds; however, the City
remains partially liable for payments on the old bonds through their respective call dates. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and the liability for the refunded bonds are included in the City’s financial statements. The
balance in the escrow account at December 31, 2014 is $2,582,598. As of December 31, 2014, the 2006
General Obligation Sewer Revenue Bonds and the 2004A General Obligation Improvement Bonds had been
defeased. The transaction resulted in an aconomic gain (difference between the present value of the debt
service on the old and the new bonds) of $221,299.

On June 20, 2013, the City issued $1,300,100 Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 20138 with
interest rates of 3.00% to advance refund $1,335,000 of the outstanding 2004B and 20058 Electric System
Revenue Bonds with interest rates ranging between 4.000% and 4.800%. The proceeds of the new bonds
were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the refunded bonds are not included in the City's
financial statements. As of December 31, 2013, $1,335,000 of the bonds outstanding were considered
defeased. The 2004B and 20058 bonds were entirely paid off in 2014 by the escrow agent. The advance
refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt
of $81,113 which was deferred and is being amortized over the life of the new debt. The transaction resulted in
an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service on the old and the new bonds) of
$71,224. :

On July 25, 2012, the City issued $1,925.000 Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A with
interest rates ranging between 2.000% and 2.500% to advance refund $1.845,000 of the outstanding 2003
Electric System Revenue Bonds with intersst rates ranging between 4.000% and 4.875%. The proceeds of the
new bonds were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the refunded bonds are not included in the City's
financial statements. As of December 31, 2012, $1,845,000 of the bonds outstanding were considered
defeased. The 2003 bonds were entirely paid off in 2013 by the escrow agent. The advance refunding resulted
in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $82,096 which

was deferred and is being amortized over the life of the new debt.
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY
The composition of interfund balances as o? December 31, 2014, is as follows:

Due toffrom other funds —

Payable Fund

Receivable Fund Amount
General Fund  Electric Enterprise Fund $ 65997
Debt Service Fund - Sewer Enterprise Fund 4,230
Electric Enterprise Fund . General Fund 1,847
Water Enterprise Fund . General Fund 750
Water Epterprise Fund - Debt Service Fund 8,172
Sewer Enterprise Fund - General Fund 1,797

| $_.82.793

The balance resulted from the time lag bétween the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided
or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments
between funds are made. é

interfund transfers for the year ended Dec}ember 31. 2014 consisted of the following:

Transfers Out

Liquor

. Store Efectric Water Sewer
General  Enterprise  Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fund _Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Transfers In
General-Fund 3 - $ 200000 $ 1,582 $ 791 % 791 $ 203164
Debt Service Fund - - - 45,315 55,210 100,525
Golf Course Enterprise Fund 25,380 ¢ - - - - 25,380
Electric Enterprise Fund 937 - - - 937
Water Enterprise Fund 468 - 468
Sewer Enterprise Fund 468 : - - 488
Nonmajor Funds -
Library Special Revenue Fund 130,810 : - - 130,810
Cedar Grove 67,611 - - - - 67,611
$.225674 $.200000 $. 1582 $._.48.100 $._ 56001 $..5203063

Transfers are used to: 1) move profits or excess cash from the Liquor Store Enterprise Fund to the General
Fund; 2) move the City's contribution tc the City library, 3) move funds to the Debt Service Fund for debt
service expenditures; 4) fund the operations of the Golf Course; and 5) reimburse the enterprise funds for their
portion of revenue receipted by the General Fund.
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NOTE 8 - FUND EQUITY

As of December 31, 2014, fund balénces are comprised of the following:

Debt Nonmajor
General Service Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable: ;
ihventories ©% 23537 % - 3 ~ % 23,537
Prepaid items f 25,433 - 4195 29,628
Total Nonspendable . 48 970 - 4195 53,165
Restricted: :
Library 5 - - 251,374 251,374
Storefront renovation ; - - 115,484 115,484
Debt service 3 - 3,166,769 - 3,156,769
Total Restricted Z - 3,156,769 366,858 3523627
Committed: _
Cable TV : - - 28,086 28,086
Assigned:
Buildings , 69,738 - - 69,738
Fire 28,709 - - 28,709
Insurance reserve _ 10,804 - - 10,804
Street equipment : 31,280 - - 31,280
Street improvements § 392,370 - ~ 392,370
Street sealcoat project : 100,864 - - 100,964
Library _ - - 244,450 244 450
Total Assigned } 633,865 - 244,450 B78.315
Unassigned L 2340414 - ~ 2.340.414
Total fund balances - $.3,023.249 $.3,156.769 $_.843.589 $.6,823,607

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. To cover these
risks of loss, except for boiler and machinery risks, the City, as allowed under state statutes,
joined the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust, a public entity risk pool currently
operating as @ common risk management and insurance program for its member cities. The
City pays annual premiums to the Trust for its insurance coverage and retains the risk for the
deductible portions of the insurance. The League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust is self-
sustaining through member premiums and reinsures through commercial companies for claims
in excess of the limits set by the Trustees. The City carries commercial insurance for boiler and
machinery risks. There were no significant increases or reductions in insurance from the
previous year. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years.
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NOTE 10 - JOINTLY GOVERNED @RGAN*ZATION

Cook County/Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority

The City of Grand Marais and Cock County established, through special legislation, the Cook
County/Grant Marais Joint Economic Development Authority to jointly increase the tax base and
e?;p!oyment opportunities of the City and County through public support of private development
efforts. 3 ‘

The Authority is governed by sever§1 commissioners composed of three members appointed by
the City and four members appointed by the County.

The Authority is currently developing lots to be sold in Cedar Grove Business Park. The City, in
consideration for construction of street improvements, water and sewer extensions and curb
and gutter on the platted roads in the Business Park, has entered into an agreement with the
Authority whereby owners will be assessed $60,000 per platted lot, payable from the closing
proceeds at the time of sale. The City received $22,888 under this agreement in 2014,

NOTE 11 - JOINT VENTURE

Joint Powers Agreement for Library Services

The City of Grand Marais entered into a joint powers agreement with Cook County on
December 15, 1992. The purpose of the agreement is to provide library services to the
residents of the City and County through the City's Grand Marais Public Library. The County, in
consideration of the services provided to its residents, agrees to continue its membership in the
multi-county Arrowhead Library System and contribute 50% of the budgeted annual operating

costs of the library board to the Citﬁy. which totaled $102,030 in 2014,

The library is governed by a boarc?i of seven members serving staggered three-year terms and
appointed by the Mayor of the City with the consent of the City Council. Four members shall be
residents of the City and three meinbers shall be county residents from outside the City limits.

If the agreement is terminated, any capital assets (other than the original library building)
purchased during the term of the agreement having a purchase price in excess of $1,000, shall
be reimbursed fifty percent of the then market value to the County. This reimbursement only
applies to the purchase price paid from the normal operating budget shared by the City and
County and shall not apply to the purchase price paid by gift, grant, or other outside funding.

Joint Recreation Board 5

The City entered into a joint powers agreement with Independent School District No. 166-Cook
County and Cook County to build, manage, and maintain recreational facilities for the benefit of
both residents and visitors to Cook County.

The Joint Recreation Board is goffemed by a nine-member board composed of three members
from the City, three from the County, and three from the School District.

If the agreement is terminated, ?a!l real and personal property will be sold and any surplus

money and property remaining after payment of all liabilities shall be returned to the parties in
proportion to each party’s total cogﬂtribution over the three years prior to termination.
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NOTE 11 - JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

in 2014, the City did not contritf:ute to the Joint Recreation Board. Complete financial
information can be obtained from the Joint Recreation Board, Cook County Courthouse, 411
West Second Street, Grand Marais, MN 55604.

Joint Powers Agreement for Sharad Costs of Cook County Community Center

The City entered into a joint powers agreement with Cook County to implement procedures for
the sharing of costs by the County and City for the new Cook County Community Center
benefitting constituents of the City and County.

The use of the Community Center éwiil be under the control of the County who has contracted
with the Duluth Area Family YMCA §the “WMCA") pursuant to a management agreement.

The County, through the YMCA, éshaH establish the schedule of operating hours, events,
services and programs for the use of the Community Center consistent with the Management
Agreement and this Agreement.

In consideration of the services profvided to its residents, the City shall:

(i) Annually contribute to the County fifty percent (50%) of the prior year's annual
operating losses based on costs of maintenance of the Community Center
building (not including ‘any outdoor recreation areas or amenities) and
programming up to $100.000. If the annual operating losses exceed $200,000
the City contribution shall increase annually by the lesser of five percent (5%) or
a percentage equal to the annual Consumer Price Index (CP! — Midwest Urban
Nonmetropolitan (less than 50,000) for the preceding calendar year; provided,
however, that if such increase is greater than the lesser of five percent (5%) or a
percentage equal to the annual CPI for the preceding calendar year, such
greater amount must be approved by the City. The County shall annually invoice
the City for the City's portion of the operating loss up to the maximum atiowed
percent increase as applicable at least 60 days prior o the payment date and
shall include a separate itemized accounting of the operating loss with the
County’s invoice. Any request for additional payments for operating losses above
the allowed percent maximum increase in any given year shall be by separate
written request from the County.

(i) Pay fifty percent {50%) cf the YMCA personnel costs for the 8-month period prior
to the official opening of the YMCA in the year that the Community Center
building commences operation, up to @ maximum of $35,000.

(i) Annually contribute $10,000 to the Community Center Capital improvement
Fund. The County shall manage the Capital Improvement Fund, which shall be
used for the repair, replacement, and maintenance of the structural components
of the Community Center building.

(iv) The City shall not be résponsibte for payment of any costs Of expenses for or

related to the Community Center except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement.
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NOTE 11 - JOINT VENTURE (CO&T%NUED)
in 2014, the City contributed 3110,600 to the County under this agreement.

in consideration of the City's comméitment to share the ongoing costs of maintenance and of the
Community Center as provided abcve, the County shall;

(iy Pay fifty percent (50%) of the costs to demolish and remove the existing City-
owned swimming pool, which amount shall not exceed $25,000 without the prior
written consent of the County; and

(i) Pay fifty percent (50%) of the costs to settle the case with Burbach Aquatics, Inc.
(including exclusively the settlement amount as contained in that certain 2013
settlement and release agreement between Burbach Aquatics, Inc. and the City,
along with the City's attoraey fees incurred in settling such matter) which amount
shall not exceed $39,628; and

(iliy Pay or arrange for payment of all other costs and expenses related to the
Community Center. '

in 2014, the County contributed $E§,5,000 for demolition of the old pool and $56,813 for the 2013
pool operating costs.

Management of the Cook County Family YMCA shall be pursuant to the Management
Agreement between the County and Duluth YMCA. A representative appointed by the City
Council shall serve as a voting member on the Branch Board of Directors for the Community
Center; such representation is not intended to create a joint venture or joint enterprise between
the City and the County. :

The County will own the Commun'ﬁty Center, and this Agreement provides the City no ownership
interest in the Community Center as the intent of this Agreement is to allow the City to
contribute financially to assist the County with the future operating losses of the Community

Center. The County will be responsible for operation, maintenance, construction, repair and re-

construction of the Community Center and all improvements thereto; provided that the County
may assign operation and management obligations to the YMCA.

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for a period of twenty-five (25) years from
its effective date and shall automatically renew in five (5) year increments thereafter, unless the
City or County within 180 days of the expiration of a respective period provides written notice of
termination to the other party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be
terminated by mutual written agrezsment of the City and County.

NOTE 12 - POOL DEMOLITION
in 2014, the City demolished the ?City-owned swimming pool. Demolition costs totaled $64,726.

The County contributed $25,000 toward these demolition costs. The net book value of pool
capital assets were written off res@uiting in a loss on disposal of $160,680.
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NOTE 13 - OTHER COMM!TMENfS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grants f

The City participates in grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of
the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and
adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with
the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required
and the collectibility of any related receivable at December 31, 2014, may be impaired. In the
opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the
rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been
recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies.

Electric Utility Commitment :

The Grand Marais Public Utilities Commission purchases power from Southern Minnesota
Municipal Power Agency (SMMPA) under a power sales contract which extends to April 1,
2050. Under the terms of the contract, the Commission is obligated to buy all the electrical
power and energy needed to operate the electric utilities through the term of the contract. The
City of Grand Marais and SMMPA have entered into a quick-start capacity and energy purchase
agreement in which SMMPA has agreed to purchase all of the energy and capacity of the
Grand Marais generating plant. SMMPA will pay the Grand Marais Public Utilities $216,000
annually for the capacity of the plant. The term of this contract is the period commencing on the
commercial operating date of the plant (February 18, 2004) and ending on the day of the
contract year that includes the twentieth anniversary of the commercial operating date, uniess
earlier terminated or extended as provided in the agreement.

NOTE 14 - FUNDS HELD BY OTHERS

The City of Grand Marais' Public Library is a beneficiary of a designated fund at Minnesota
Community Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement establishing this fund, property
contributed to Minnesota Community Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the City of Grand Marais’ Public Library. The agreement provides that payments from
the fund to the City of Grand Marais’ Public Library can be made at the discretion of the
Minnesota Community Foundation at such times and in such amounts and for such charitable
purposes as the Minnesota Community Foundation deems appropriate. The fund is not
included in the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota’s financial statements, since all property in the
fund was contributed to the Minnesota Community Foundation to be held and administered for
the benefit of the City of Grand Marais’ Public Library. The market value of the fund assets was
approximately $26,883 an December 31, 2014.

The City of Grand Marais’ Public Library is a beneficiary of a designated fund at Dututh-
Superior Area Community Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement establishing this
fund, property contributed to Duluth-Superior Area Community Foundation is held as a separate
fund designated for the benefit of the City of Grand Marais’ Public Library. The agreement
provides that payments from the fund to the City of Grand Marais’ Public Library can be made
at the discretion of the Duluth-Superior Area Community Foundation at such times and in such
amounts and for such charitable purposes as the Duluth-Superior Area Community Foundation
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deems appropriate. The fund is not included in the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota’s financial
statements, since all property ir the fund was contributed to the Duluth-Superior Area
Community Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the City of Grand Marais’
Public Library. The market value cf the fund assets was approximately $50,965 on December
31, 2014.

NOTE 15 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - STATEWIDE
A. Plan Description |

Al full-time and certain part-time employees of the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota, are
covered by defined benefit plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association
of Minnesota (PERA). PERA administers the General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF)
which is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement plan. This plan is established and
administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356.

GERF members belong to eitheﬁ the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan
members are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All new members
must participate in the Coordinated Plan.

PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to
survivors upon death of eligible members. Benefits are established by state statute, and vest
after five years of credited service. The defined retirement benefits are based on a member’'s
highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of
credit at termination of service.

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members.
The retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a
level accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Pian
member is 2.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years of service and 2.7
percent for each remaining year. The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2
percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year.
Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for Basic Plan
members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service. For GERF
members hired prior to July 1, 1989 whose annuity is calculated using Method 1, a full annuity
is available when age plus years of service equal 90. Normal retirement age is 65 for Basic and
Coordinated members hired prior to July 1, 1989. Normal retirement age is the age for
unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 for Coordinated members hired on or after
July 1, 1989. A reduced retirement annuity is also available to eligible members seeking early
retirement. :

There are different types of annuities available to members upon retirement. A single-life
annuity is a lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree--no survivor annuity is
payable. There are also various types of joint and survivor annuity options available which will
be payable over joint lives. Members may also jeave their contributions in the fund upon
termination of public service in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Refunds
of contributions are avaitable at any time to members who leave public service, but before
retirement benefits begin. '
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The benefit provisions stated in thé previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions
and apply to active plan participants.

PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for GERF. That report may be obtained on the Internet at
www.mnpera.org, by writing to PERA at 60 Empire Drive #200, St. Paul, Minnesota, 55103-
2088 or by calling (651) 296-7460 or 1-800-652-9026.

B. Funding Policy

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. These
statutes are established and amended by the state legislature. The City makes annual
contributions to the pension plans equal to the amount required by state statutes. GERF Basic
Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.10% and 6.25%,
respectively, of their annual covered salary in 2014. In 2014, the City of Grand Marais was
required to contribute the following percentages of annual covered payroll: 11.78% for Basic
Plan members and 7.25% for Coordinated Plan members. The City's contributions to the Public
Employees Retirement Fund for the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were
$84,964, $88,660, and $87,713, respectively. The City's contributions were equal to the
contractually required contributions for each year as set by state statute. Contribution rates will
increase on January 1, 2015 in the Coordinated Plan (6.5% for members and 7.5% for
employers). :

NOTE 16 - DEFINED commaui‘tou PLAN

One council member of the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota is covered by the Public
Employees Defined Contribution Plan (PEDCP), a multiple-employer deferred compensation
plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). The
PEDCP is a tax qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and all
contributions by or on behalf of employees are tax deferred until time of withdrawal.

Plan benefits depend solely on arnounts contributed to the plan plus investment eamings, less
administrative expenses. Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353D.03, specifies plan provisions,
including the employee and employer contribution rates for those qualified personnel who elect
to participate. An eligible elected official who decides to participate contributes 5 percent of
salary which is matched by the elected official’'s employer. Employees who are paid for their
services may elect to make member contributions in an amount not to exceed the employer
share. Employer and employee contributions are combined and used to purchase shares in one
or more of the seven accounis of the Minnesota Supplemental Investment Fund. For
administering the plan, PERA receives 2 percent of employer contributions and twenty-five
hundredths of one percent of the assets in each member’'s account annually.

Total contributions made by the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota during fiscal year 2014 were:

Contribution Amount - Percentage of Covered Payroli Required
Employee Employer Employee Employer Rates

$ 240 $ 240 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
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Joint Powers Agreement

On June 9, 2015, the City entered into a joint powers agreement with the Cook County/Grand
Marais Joint Economic Development Authority (EDA) and Cook County for reassessment of
Cedar Grove Business Park lots and contributions for Business Park debt servicing, changing
the original agreement referred to in Note 10. Under this new agreement, on or before July 1 of
each year, the County is required to pay the City 50% of the annual bond payment the City
must pay for that year on the 2009A Improvement Refunding Bonds. The EDA will be credited
towards the Business Park assessments for any amounts paid to the City by the County. The
EDA is also required to pay to the City any levied assessments on lots sold in the Business
Park, to be used by the City for payments on the 2009A Improvement Refunding Bonds. On
May 27, 2015, the City received $60,000 from the EDA.

Biomass District Heating

The Biomass District Heating pro}éct will not be further pursued.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

~  GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Budgeted Amounts Amounts (Negative)
~_Original Final
REVENUES :
Taxes :

Property $ 597,053 $ 597,053 $ 593,228 $ (3,825)
Special assessments 1,265 1,265 1,265 -
Licenses and permits : 82,340 82,340 85,079 2,739
Intergovernmental ; 154,728 164,728 443309 288,581
Charges for services : 958,371 958,371 1,045,721 87,350
Fines : 3,660 3,660 4489 829
Gifts and contributions - - - 37,776 37,776
Interest 3 6,000 6,000 6,812 812
Miscellaneous ~ - 4,418 4,418

TOTAL REVENUES 1,803,417 1,803,417 2,222,097 418,680
EXPENDITURES
Current .

General government 565,174 565,174 704,544 (139,370)

Public safety 3 217,757 217,757 193,986 23,771

Streets _ 341,469 341,469 239,003 102 466

Culture and recreation : 686,535 686,535 644,557 41,978

Economic development ; - - 5,040 (5,040)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 1,810,935 1,810,935 1,787,130 23,805

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF :

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (7,518) {7,518) 434,967 442 485
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in : 200,000 200,000 203,164 3,164
Transfers out {157,810) {157,810) (225,674) (67,864)
Sate of capital assets ‘ - - 2,302 2,302

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES) 42,190 42,190 (20,208) (62,398)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 34672 34872 414,759 380,087
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 2,608,490 2,608,490 2,608,490 -

FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 2643162 $ 2643162 § 3023248 3 380,087

See notes to required supplementary information.
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NOTE 1 - BUDGETING
The City Clerk/Treasurer prepares{ a proposed budget for the City's funds on the same basis as
the fund financial statements. The City Council adopts an annual budget for the fiscal year for

the City's General Fund, Special Rfevenue Funds, and Debt Service Fund.

Legal budgetary control is at the jfund account level: management control is exercised at line-
item levels. Budget appropriations lapse at year end, if unexpended.

Budgéted amounts are as originaliy adopted or as amended by the City Council. The Schedule

of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual - General Fund
presents a comparison of budgetary data to actual results.
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OTHER SiUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




NONM#}JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used t§o account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for specified purposes
other than debt service or capital projects.

The Library Special Revenue Funéi is used to account for county grants, charges for services,
and private donations that are restricted or assigned to the library operations.

The Cable TV Special Revenug l%und is used to account for revenues collected to fund the
operation of a TV channel to teievig;e local events.

The Storefront Renovation Sgeciat Revenue Fund is used to account for collection and
disbursement of revolving loan fun{is to area businesses for storefront renovation.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that-are restricted,
committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition and
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those
types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary funds.

The EDA Cedar Grove Business Park Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the
construction of infrastructure and streets in the Cedar Grove Business Park.




CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

. COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NDNMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
: December 31, 2014

EDA Cedar
Storefront Grove Total
. Library Cable TV Renovation Business Park Nonmajor
. §pecial Special Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Fund  Revenue Fund  Revenue Fund  Projects Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $: 508,996 $ 27,078 $ 115,484 3 - $ 651,556
Accounts receivable ; - 1,010 - - 1,010
Loans receivables : - - 32,094 - 32,094
Prepaid-items § 4,195 ~ - - 4185
TOTAL ASSETS $ 513,191 3 28,086 3 147,578 % - ) 688,855
LIABILITIES :
Accounts payable $ 2,470 $ - 3 ~ $ - 3 2470
Sataries payable : 10,702 - - - 10,702
TOTAL LIABILITIES 13472 - - - 13,172
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue ~ joans receivable - - 32,094 - 32,094
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 4195 - - ~ 4,195
Restricted . : 251,374 - 115,484 - 366,858
Committed ; . 28,086 - R 28,086
Assigned 244 450 - - - 244,450
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 500,019 28,086 115,484 ~ 643,589
TOTAL UABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES g 513191 § 28086 $ 147578 § . §$ 68885
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CiTyY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENUES

Taxes - franchise fee
intergovernmental
Charges for services
Gifts and contributions
investment earnings
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
Culture and recreation
Economic development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFIGIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers'in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31

Year Ended December 31, 2014

EDA Cedar
: Storefront Grove Total
Library Cable TV Renovation Business Park Nonmajor

Special Special Special Capital Governmental

Revenue Fund  Revenue Fund  Revenue Fund. - Projects Fund Funds
$ -8 3854 B -8 - % 3.854
102,030 - . - 102,030
19,923 . . - 19,923
16,928 - - - 16,928
1,014 - 916 30 1,980
2 - 16,265 . 16,267
139,897 3,854 17,181 30 160,962
© 254,120 . - - 254,120
: - - - 80,000 80,000
| 254,120 - - 80,000 334,120
(114,223) 3,854 17,181 (79.970) (173,158)
130,810 - - 67,611 198,421
16,587 3,854 17,181 (12,356) 25,263
483432 24,232 98,303 12,359 618,326
$ 500018 & 28086 § 115484 § . $ 643589
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CI‘;TY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVEB;%UES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended December 31,2014

REVENUES

Taxes
Generat property

Special Assessments

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental :
Federal grants :
Emergency management aid
USDA, Forest Service :
State
Local government aid
Taconite production
PERA aid
County
Swimming poal

Total inte rgovemmenta?l

Charges for Services
General government
Rent
Miscellaneous
Public safety
Fire protection contacts
Culture and recreation
Park
Boat hacbors

Total Charges for Sewices

Fines
Court fines

Gifts and Contributions

Invegtment earnings

Miscellaneous
Cther

TOTAL REVENUES
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$__ 593228
1,265

85,079

PEBSSIERNS LS Suebsouly

92,889
159,300

96,422
7,570
5,315

81,813

PRSI Sosoa

443,309

66,150
6,824

40,888

843,587
88,262

1,045 721

4,489
37,776

6,812

PESSERSIRROMIIL S bo v oy

4,418

2,222,097




cn;v OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Year Ended December 31, 2014

EXPENDITURES

Current

General Government
Mayar and council

City clerk

City clark capitat outlay
Elections

independent audit
Legal

Planning and zoning
Buildings

Public works capital outlay
Other

Total General Govemment

Public Safety
Palice

Fire

Fire capital autiay
Animal control

Total Public Safety

Streets
Maintenance
Strest lighting
Capital outlay

Total Streets

Culture and Recreation
Reacreation :
Recreation capital outlay
Swimming poal :
Boat harbors

City parks

Total Culture and Recraatxon

Economic Development ;
Loan forgivenass '

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(CONTINUED)
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3 27,198
157,003

8,070

11,529

14,300

38,950

29,173

61,585

5,284

351,452

704,544

140,000
48,468
4,248
1,270

193,886

206,005
26,613
8,483

[FOVEUSNUEEEE..o> A v ey

239,003

454,318
18,100
96,585
51,529
24,015

644,557

5,040

1,787,130




CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

: GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
(CONTINUED)
:Year Ended December 31, 2014

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES ; 3 434,967

QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in : 203,164
Transfers out f (225,874}
Sale of capital assets : 2,302
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {20,208)
NET CHANGE IN FUND E}ALANCE 414,759
FUND BALANGE - JANUARY 1 2,608,490
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 3023249
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Walker, _
Cil(e )@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

Hahne: Bt pRIse: Street North, Suite 2400, Virginia, Minnesota 55792
' ‘ 218-749-4880 « FAX 218-749-8528 ’

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Grand Marais, Minnesota

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
the governmental activities, the tusiness-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota's basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated June 16, 2015.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Grand
Marais, Minnesota’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota’s internal
control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2014-003 to be a material
weakness. f
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. We consider thz deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses as items 2014-001 and 2014-002 to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota’s.
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulits of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Minnesota Legal Compliance

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions, promulgated by the
State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains six categories of compliance to be tested:
contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness,
claims and disbursements, and miscellaneous provisions. Our audit considered all of the listed
categories. :

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that City of
Grand Marais, Minnesota failed to comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal
Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions, except as described in the schedule of
findings and responses as item 2014-004. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward
obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional
procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the City of Grand Marais,
Minnesota’s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

Other Matters

We noted certain matters that \?ve reported to management of the City of Grand Marais,
Minnesota in a separate letter dated June 16, 2015, included under this cover.

City of Grand Marais, Minnesoté’s Response to Findings

City of Grand Marais, Minnesota’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. City of Grand Marais, Minnesota's
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements, and, accordingly, we 2xpress no opinion on it. ’

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any-other
purpose.

[ty % vl LLE

Virginia, Mi
June 16, 2015
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ciTY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

SCHEDUL?E OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014-001. SEGREGATION OF Dl?JTIES

Condition

Due to the limited number of parsonnei within the City's financial and utility offices, the
segregatlon of accounting functlor s necessary to ensure adequate internal accounting control
is not possible.

Criteria

The concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of individuals is not
desirable from an internal accounting control point of view.

Effect

Because of the weakness in segregatton of duties, the City has not provided adequate internal
control. _

Cause
This occurred because of stafﬂng hm:tatzons caused by fiscal constraints.

Recommendations :

Officials and management of the C:ty should constantly be aware of this condition, attempt to
segregate duties as much as poss;bie and provide oversight to partially compensate for this
deficiency.

Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

1. Explanation of Disagreemént with Audit Finding
There is no disagreement With the audit finding.

2. Actions Planned in Response to Finding
The City Administrator will attempt to monitor transactions and structure the duties of
office personnel to help ensure as much segregation of duties as possible within the
City's staffing limitations ard funding constraints.

3. Official Responsible for Ensfsuring CAP
Michael J. Roth, City Admirﬁwistrator, is the official responsible for ensuring this plan.

4. Planned Completion Date for CAP
The City’'s Administrator has been monitoring transactions and reviewing the duties of
office personnel on an ongoing basis.

5. Plan to Monitor Comptettor; of CAP

The City Council recognizes the weakness in segregation of duties and has continually
provided oversight {o part;cmy compensate for this deficiency.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FleDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014-002. INVENTORIES

Condition
Several problems with the physical inventory counts exist.

1. The December 31, 2014 lifquor store final inventory listing did not agree with the
auditor's observed counts in some cases, contained negative quantities, and costs
were not extended and totated.

2. Electric wire inventory decréased, but the auditor was informed that the PUC did not
use any of that particular wire during the year.

3. Several item costs did not afppear to be updated in various inventories.

Criteria %
The City’s internal accounting controls over inventory aid in meeting ‘management’s operating
control objectives. Periodic physical inventories provide a basis for updating inventory balances
and aid in detecting significant inventory shortages. Physical inventories also serve as checks
on the performance of those responsible for inventory custody and related functions of
purchasing and receiving. 5

Effect
inventory balances are not update{:i and significant shortages may not be detected.

Cause
This occurred due to a lack of wri%,ten inventory procedures and follow-up, and new employees
unfamiliar with inventory procedures.

Recommendations ;

Employees responsible for inventory custody and related functions of purchasing and receiving
might have biased interests in the results of physical counts; therefore, those employees should
not be responsible for physical inventory procedures. Personnel from the accounting
department should have the respansibility of planning, supervising, and test counting physical
inventories. However, the department supervisors should have input during the planning phase
so efficient and effective physical inventories can be achieved.

Before inventory is counted, the accounting department should prepare and distribute to
counters written instructions. Detailed written instructions, if followed, ensure that all pricing
items are counted, each item is included only once, and proper summarization of counts is
prepared. f

Pricing of the physical quantities counted should be consistent and well documented to be
reliable. Persons responsible for pricing should indicate whether prices are from sources other
than the most recent invoice. The computer can assist in keeping price records and computing
extensions and footings. :

59




CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FlNDiNG$ AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
Yea}* Ended December 31, 2014

2014-002. INVENTORIES (Contin’?ued)

Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

1.

Explanation of Disagreement with Audit Finding
There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Actions Planned in Response to Finding

The City will prepare written inventory counting instructions, discuss the instructions with
department supervisors and employees, and review and test count physical inventories.
in addition, the inventory itam costs and extended inventory listing will be reviewed for
accuracy. :

Official Responsible for Ens;uring CAP
The City Administrator is the official responsible for ensuring this plan.

Planned Completion Date for CAP

The City Administrator has monitored the performance of a liquor physical inventory at
May 31, 2015. Written inventory instructions will be prepared and distributed prior to the
next physical inventory on December 31, 2015.

Plan to Monitor Comp!etiorf of CAP
Management will monitor inventories on an ongoing basis.
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CITY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FI&D%NGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
Yeat} Ended December 31, 2014

2014-003. LACK OF CONTROL O;VER FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

Condition and Criteria ;

As part of the audit, managemert requested that the auditor prepare a draft of the City's
financial statements. including the related notes to financial statements. Management reviewed,
approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statements prior to their issuance;
however, management does not possess the technical expertise to comply with governmental
accounting standards. :

Effect :
The potential exists that a material misstatement of the financial statements could occur and
not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal control,

Cause ;
This occurred because of staffing limitations caused by fiscal constraints.

Recommendations :
in order to provide controls over the financial statement preparation services at an appropriate
jevel, we suggest management establish effective review policies and procedures.

Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

1. Explanation of Disagreement with Audit Finding
There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

2. Actions Planned in Resporfse to Finding
Management has determined that the cost and training involved to review or prepare the
City’s financial statements sxceeds the benefit that would result.

3. Official Responsible for Ensuring CAP
None - see number 2 above.

4. Planned Completion Date t;’or CAP
None - see number 2 above.

5. Plan to Monitor Completiori of CAP
None — see number 2 above.
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CiTY OF GRAND MARAIS, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FIRD%NGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
Yeat} Ended December 31, 2014

2014-004. COLLATERAL REQU!R;EMENTS

Condition
At December 31, 2014, the City's deposits in one of its designated financial institutions was not
collateralized at 110% as required by State statutes.

Criteria

All of the City's deposits must be covered by insurance, surety bonds or collateral. The total
amount of collateral must be computed at its market value and be at least 10 percent more than
the amount of deposits in excess of any insured portien.

Effect ;
The City is not in compliance with State statutes regarding deposits.

Cause ;
This occurred because policies in place to monitor the City's deposits and collateral agreements
were not followed. ;

‘Recommendations
Management must monitor the City's deposits and obtain the proper amount of collateral from
its financial institutions.

Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

1. Explanation of Disagreemént with Audit Finding
There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

2. Actions Planned in Resporése to Finding
The City will monitor its bank balances and will obtain the proper amount of collateral
from the financial institution.

3. Official Responsible for Ensuring CAP
The City Administrator, is the official responsible for ensuring this plan.

4. Planned Completion Date ffor CAP

The City Administrator will obtain the proper collateral agreements from the financial
institution by June 30, 2015.

5. Plan to Monitor Completioh of CAP

Management will monitor its bank balances and collateral agreements on an ongoing
basis. :
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QIANAGEMENT LETTER

To the City Council
City of Grand Marais, Minnesota

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Grand Marais,
Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City of Grand
Marais, Minnesota's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of deficiencies in internal control other than
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses and matters that are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. A separate report dated June 16, 2015,
included under this cover, contains our communication of significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in the City’s internal control. This letter does not affect our report dated June 16,
2015, on the financial statements of the City of Grand Marais, Minnesota.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have
already discussed these comments and suggestions with City personnel, and we will be
pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of
these matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. Our comments are
summarized as follows: i

Vendor Bills

Minnesota Statute §471.425, subd. 4 requires municipalities to pay all bills within the time
period set by the terms of the contract or within the standard payment period (35 days). We
noted three invoices that were not paid within this timeframe. The City should inform all
departments of this State requirement and attempt to pay all bills within this timeframe.

We also noted two invoices wi{hout the proper approval signature. We recommend that City
policies be reviewed with supervisory staff to reinforce compliance and strengthen internal
controls. f

Receipts

We noted that receipt documentation such as remittance advices and check stubs
supporting deposits from other locations such as the library were not present in City files,
We recommend that supportirg documentation underlying all transactions be maintained in
City Hall. ‘
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GASB Statement No. 68, Acc%;unting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the independent organization
that establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for state and local
governments. Effective for your calendar year 2015 financial statements, the GASB
changed those standards as thay apply to employers that provide pension benefits.

GASB Statement 68 significantly changes pension accounting and financial reporting for
governmental employers that prepare financial statements on the accrual basis by
separating pension accounting methodology from pension funding methodology. Statement
68 requires employers to include a portion of the Public Employees Retirement Association
(PERA) total employers’ unfunded liability, called the “net pension liability” on the face of the
City's statement of net position. The employer's financial position will be immediately
impacted by its unfunded share of the pension liability.

Statement 68 changes the amount employers report as pension expense and defers some
allocations of expenses to future years—deferred outflows or inflows of resources. It
requires pension costs to be calculated by an actuary; whereas, in the past pension costs
were equal o the amount of employer contributions sent to PERA during the year.
Additional footnote disclosures and required supplementary information schedules are also
required by Statement 68. '

The net pension liability that, if material, will be reported in the City of Grand Marais,
Minnesota's financial statements is an accounting estimate of the proportionate share of
PERA's unfunded liability at a specific point in time. That number will change from year to
year and is based on assumptions about the probability of the occurrence of events far into
the future. Those assumptions include how long people will live, how tong they will continue
to work, projected salary increases, and how well pension trust investments will do. PERA
has been proactive in taking steps toward implementation and will be providing most of the
information needed by the employers to report the net pension liability and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources.

This communication is intended? solely for the information and use of the City Council,
management, and the State of Minnesota, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

wmm 1%‘ LL@.

Virginia, Minnesota
June 16, 2015
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